
1 
 

VILLAGE OF GRAFTON 

 
FINANCE COMMITTEE MEETING MINUTES 

 
MONDAY, MAY 5, 2014 

 
Chair Jim Brunnquell called the meeting to order at 5:00 p.m. 
 
Committee members present: Village President Jim Brunnquell, Trustee Jim Grant, 
Trustee David Antoine and Trustee Sue Meinecke  
 
Staff present: Village Administrator Darrell Hofland, Director of Administrative Services 
Paul Styduhar, Police Chief Charles Wenten, Village Accountant Monica Stern and 
Village Clerk Kelly Meyer  
 
Other person presented:  Wendy Unger and Paul Frantz of Baker Tilly Virchow Krause 
 
2013 Comprehensive Annual Financial Report 
Director of Administrative Services Paul Styduhar introduced Baker Tilly Virchow 
Krause Partner Wendi Unger and Baker Tilly Virchow Krause Manager Paul Frantz.  Mr. 
Frantz presented the 2013 Comprehensive Annual Financial Report for the Village of 
Grafton.  Mr. Frantz noted that preliminary audit work was completed in December 
which helps in determining a schedule for the field work completed in March.  Mr. Frantz 
stated the Village was given an unqualified opinion, the highest opinion possible. The 
Executive Summary of 2013 Audit of the Village’s Financial Statements, the report on 
Internal Control, and the Comprehensive Annual Financial Report for the year ending 
December 31, 2013, were presented by Mr. Paul Frantz, as attached.  
 
Mr. Frantz commended Director of Administrative Services Paul Styduhar and Village 
Accountant Monica Stern on the wonderful job of preparing the audit and great work 
throughout the entire audit process; they are a joy to work with.     
 
President Brunnquell asked if Director of Administrative Services Mr. Styduhar or 
Village Accountant Ms. Stern would have anything to add.  There were no additions. 
 
A few questions pertaining to the percentage of debt permitted by the State, the 
Village’s policy, financial comparables to other like communities were asked by the 
Finance Committee present.  Both Ms. Unger and Mr. Frantz answered questions as 
inquired on. Ms. Unger noted the Village of Grafton is on the strong side with 
comparable communities, although it is difficult to compare municipalities due to various 
differences.  It was noted that the Village does have good transaction processes and 
control processes in place.  Debt service is at the higher end but the Village has more 
Tax Increment District activity than other municipalities she works with.    
 
President Brunnquell complimented Mr. Styduhar and Ms. Stern on the notable job 
done. 



2 
 

Motion by President Brunnquell, second Trustee Grant to recommend the 
Village Board accept the Comprehensive Annual Financial Report for the 
year ending December 31, 2013. Motion carried. 
 

Hotel Market Analysis/Feasibility Update  
Village Administrator Darrell Hofland stated he contacted IDM Group for a proposal of 
updating the hotel/conference center market analysis completed in 2008 and 2011. The 
Hotel Market Analysis update was not budgeted for in 2014 and Administrator Hofland 
noted it could be considered for the 2015 budget.   
 
The question was asked in regard to the necessity of another hotel in the Village if the 
current hotels were not at full capacity.  It was noted that Baymont Inn and Suites 
currently has had only 28 rooms available due to water damage incurred during the 
winter and the owners are in process of remodeling the rooms that were damaged.  
Room tax revenue continues to increase which is reflective of a combination of 
increased nightly room rates and hotel utilization. 
   
President Brunnquell stated the hotel market analysis/feasibility update should be 
revisited next year.  
 
2015 Long Term Financial Plan and Fiscal Policies 
Village Administrator Darrell Hofland noted a year ago he presented this policy.  
In the 2015 Long Term Financial Plan and Fiscal Policies, he incorporated 
information from the recently completed audit.  The last three to four pages has a 
checklist of overall policies working within the parameters. 
 
Village Administrator Hofland noted that forecasting of revenues and 
expenditures for up to the last 5 years would be something for the Village to 
consideration.   
 
The Committee discussed at length the necessity of having the policy of "Use of 
Applied Fund Balance shall annually not exceed 5 percent of the General Fund 
expenditure level."  Due to the Village's use of more than 5 percent as a strategy 
to maximize the Expenditure Restraint Program's annual expenditure limit, 
Administrator Hofland suggested that he will remove it from the future list of 
polices. 
 

Motion by Trustee Meinecke, second Trustee Grant to recommend the 
Village Board approve the 2015 Long Term Financial Plan and Fiscal 
Policies as proposed. Motion carried. 
 

2015 Areas of Emphasis 
Administrator Hofland indicated the Areas of Emphasis have been a guiding set of 
major goals for the Village for several years.  Most of the changes in the proposed 2015 
Areas of Emphasis are either police or fire related.  



3 
 

Trustee Meinecke inquired on the duplication of some of the goals.  Administrator 
Hofland agreed there were some goal duplicates due to some goals meeting several 
Areas of Emphasis. 
 

Motion by Trustee Grant, seconded by Trustee Meinecke to recommend 
the Village Board approve the 2015 Areas of Emphasis and related goals 
as presented.  Motion carried. 

 
5 Year Capital Improvement Program (CIP) 
Village Administrator Hofland noted there were a couple of formula errors in the packet 
version of the CIP. He distributed new copies to the Finance Committee.  Administrator 
Hofland indicated yellow or blue color on the document means they are consistent with 
last year’s approved 2014-2018 Capital Improvement Program.  Administrator Hofland 
noted the Fire Department was added even though they were not on the May 2013 
version of the CIP prior to Chief Rice’s July 2013 appointment.  The only two items that 
differ from the Committee recommendations are the $11,120 four-wheel all terrain drive 
Utility vehicle and the initial purchase in 2018 of a $15,000 license plate reader. 
 
Trustee Grant expressed his concern with delaying the purchase and use of the license 
reader.  Meijer will be opening soon, bringing more traffic.  Interstate I-43 is a link from 
Chicago to Green Bay, which creates concern.  Trustee Grant recommended moving 
this up due to growth and easy accessibility to Grafton to 2015. President Brunnquell 
agreed.  
   
President Brunnquell recommended, after talking with Director of Public Works Mr. 
Murphy, to reduce the proposed 2015 cost of the $130,000 chipper/chipper truck by 
$15,000 to fund the 2015 purchase of the license plate reader. This is the time to 
provide the businesses with the Village’s commitment to safety.    
 
There was a brief discussion on the Fire Department equipment and the impact on the 
Fire Department Equipment Fund's fund balance.   
 

Motion by Trustee Antoine, second Trustee Grant to recommend the 
Village Board approve the 2015 - 2019 Five Year Capital Improvement 
Program with the changes as noted. Motion carried. 

 
OLD BUSINESS 
Police Chief Wenten alerted Administrator Hofland to a personnel matter that will need 
to be reviewed by the Finance Committee and the Village Board.  A recently hired 
Administrative Assistant has returned to her previous employer and Chief Wenten has 
some recommended changes to his Table of Organization in order to file this vacancy. 
 
It was determined that a brief Finance Committee meeting would be held prior to the 
Village Board meeting on May 19, 2014.  This would be placed on both agendas for 
action. 
 



4 
 

Trustee Meinecke inquired on the status of IQM2 paperless packet. Village Clerk Kelly 
Meyer noted with the recent close of the Spring Election, IQM2 has been contacted for 
assistance with a simultaneous trial IQM2 Village Board agenda with a prepared paper 
Village Board agenda.  The Apple iPads will be set up with passwords in preparation to 
be used with a trial simultaneous Village Board agenda. 
 
NEW BUSINESS 
 
ADJOURN 
 

Motion by Trustee Grant, seconded by Trustee Meinecke to adjourn at 
5:50 p.m.  Motion carried. 


